SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 3, 2014
9:02 a.m

9:02: 50 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Suzanne Arnstrong, Staff, Senator Kevin Meyer; M chael
Hanl ey, Conmi ssioner, Departnment of Education and Early
Devel opnent .

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Richard Konmer, Senior Attorney, Institute for Justice,
Arlington, VA, Dr. Deena Parano, Superintendent, Mat-Su
Bor ough School District; Bethany Marcum Self, Anchorage.

SUMVARY
SIR 9 CONST. AM  EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG

SJIR 9 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

AVENDMVENTS TO CONTRACT BETWEEN HAY GROUP, INC. and THE
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE



9:04:43 AM

AAVENDMENTS TO CONTRACT BETWEEN HAY GROUP, [INC. and THE
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE

9:04: 47 AM

SUZANNE ARMSTRONG, STAFF, SENATOR KEVIN MEYER, addressed a
prof essional services contract that had been executed in
August 2013 between Hay G oup, Inc. and the Senate Fi nance
Conmittee (copy on file). Additionally, commttee nenbers
had been provided with a copy of a draft amendnment
proposing to increase the contract anount by $150,000 for a
total not to exceed $450,027 (copy on file). The proposed
anendnent would also extend the contract ternmination date
from May 1, 2014 to June 30, 2014. She explained that
commttee nenbers had additional questions and had
requested further analysis of Hay Goup, Inc. follow ng the
rel ease of the group's final report on Decenber 6, 2013 and
its presentation to the Senate Finance Conmttee on
Decenber 10, 2013. After discussions with Hay G oup, Inc.
it had been determined that an additional $150,000 would
allow analysis work to continue through the current
| egi sl ative session.

Vice-Chair Fairclough MOVED to AMEND the contract between
the Senate Finance commttee and Hay Goup, Inc. to extend
the termnation date of the contract to June 30, 2104 and
to add an additional authorization to the contract of
$150,000 for total paynents under the contract not to
exceed $450, 027.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

#sjr9
SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 9

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State
of Alaska relating to state aid for education.

9:07:28 AM

Senator Dunleavy explained SIJR 9. He stated that the
resolution was for a constitutional anmendnent regarding
education funding in Alaska. He stated that SIJR 9 was
introduced the prior year, and had five hearings in the
Judiciary Commttee. He stated that SIJR 9 would change

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 02/03/14 9:02 A M



| anguage in two sections of the constitution. Under Section
1, article 7, "no noney shall be paid from public funds for
the direct benefit of any religious or other private
educational institution"; and Section 6, "however nothing
in this section shall prevent paynent from public funds for
the direct educational benefit of students as provided by
| aw' shall be renoved.

9: 08: 36 AM
AT EASE

9:09: 55 AM
RECONVENED

Senat or Dunl eavy noted that the fiscal note attached to the
bill was $1,500, and the second page of the fiscal note
showed that the fiscal note could be raised to $22, 000.

9:10: 20 AM
AT EASE

9:10:35 AM
RECONVENED

Senat or Dunl eavy said that the fiscal note would be $15, 000
for one sheet, and $22,000 for two sheets. He stated that
the purpose of the resolution was to help people who were
examning alternative forns of education. He shared that
there were many public/private partnerships from the pre-K
level to the Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent
(DEED). He remarked that there were sone private, for-
profit, and/or religious vendors that were associated with
the growing honeschool population. He referred to a
homeschool ing | aw that becane effective in the md-nineties
that allowed Al askans to detach thenselves from the public
school system He stated that shortly after that |aw was
enacted, sonme school districts forned homeschool prograns
to neet the needs of those that had left the system As a
result, the honeschool, correspondence, and charter school s
were sone of the fastest growi ng segments of education in
Al aska. In order to grow the progranms further, and involve
nore public/private partnerships, the |anguage of the
constitution nust be <changed. He wused Brigham Young
University (BYU) as an exanple of a religious institution
that taught academ c courses, and was not used to deliver
religious instruction. He explained that the courts in
Al aska had ruled consistently that the funds could be

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 02/03/14 9:02 A M



distributed in a direct and indirect manner. He shared that
the drafters of the original constitution had intentionally
|l eft out the concept of "indirect" on purpose, because they
believed that there would be occasions which the state
would need to partner wth private and/or religious
entities to help children. He felt that it was time to
anend the constitution in order to neet the very diverse
needs of Alaska's student populations, and to outline
details of the post-secondary offerings. He felt that
anending the constitution would elimnate further question
regarding the use of public funds for education. He alleged
that |awsuits would be filed in the future in order to stop
sonme practices that would benefit Al askans. He urged the
commttee to nove the bill from commttee, so Al askans
could have an opportunity to weigh in on the education
system and constitution.

9:15: 08 AM

Senator O son wondered why "indirect" was not included in
the constitution. Senator Dunleavy responded that there had
been discussion during the constitutional convention
regarding the inclusion of "direct”, "indirect", or neither
word included. He felt that there had been a conpromse to
keep the word "direct” in the |anguage. He understood that
many of the original drafters felt that there should not be

a direct link between the state and/or religious
educational entities. He stated that the original drafters
did not include "indirect", because they wanted to provide

an opportunity for future legislatures to create prograns
that help children that may be in orphanages, foster care,
or long-term hospital residential facilities to possibly
receive an education that may stem from a partnership with
a religious organization.

Senator Hof frman | ooked at the second sentence of the bil

which states, "public funds for the direct educational
benefit of students, as provided by law." He wondered if
there was anticipation for defining how the provision would
be i npl enment ed. Senat or Dunl eavy responded in the
affirmative, and furthered that SB 100 addressed a
provi sion. He explained that SB 100 would be program that
woul d take place as a result of the |anguage change in the
constitution. SB 100 was an expanded public home-school
correspondence law. He explained that SB 100 would allow
i ndividuals to becone part of the honmeschool process could
enroll in funding. SB 100 would also allow for private

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 02/03/14 9:02 A M



and/or religious educational vendors to be recognized as
| egiti mate educati onal vendors.

Senat or O son queried the current version  of t he
resol ution.

9:19: 29 AM
AT EASE

9:20: 06 AM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Meyer declared that the version of the resolution
bei ng di scussed was SJR 9, version U

Senator Dunleavy stated that the recognized vendors under
SB 100 could be any of the wvarious private or public
educational product distributors. He remarked that the
i ndi vidual vendors were not held to state standards. The
| ndi vi dual Learning Plan (ILP), which governs the child's
education, would be held against the state standard. He
explained that when a private educational service was
purchased, and that coursework hel ped support the ILP for
each student in Alaska. He remarked that the ILPs were
geared to ensure proficiency in the standards.

Co-Chair Kelly asked for a restatenent of the explanation
Senator Dunl eavy responded that the public school system
currently purchased various learning tools from private
conpanies, |ike pencils and conputer systens. He stated
that those itens were resources to support a child's
education. He remarked that the resources did not need to
be aligned to state standards, rather they are tools that
were used to support the child s educational plan. He
remar ked that honmeschooled children were still required to
align with the state standards, and the parents were
responsible to ensure that the purchased naterials
supported that goal

Co- Chair Meyer wondered how nany states had sonme sort of
version of the proposed program Senator Dunl eavy | ooked at
the website, http://ww.edchoice. org/ School - Choi ce/ School -
Choi ce-Prograns, and stated that there were approximtely
26 states with 42 prograns. He explained that the prograns
were self-contained, and did not spread beyond the border
of the program He stated that the website outlined the
speci fic boundari es of each program

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 02/03/14 9:02 A M



9:25:35 AM
AT EASE

9:29: 20 AM
RECONVENED

9:29: 46 AM

Co-Chair Meyer asked for further information regarding
other states that had inplenented simlar prograns. Senator
Dunl eavy responded that approximately 26 states had about
42 prograns. He explained that some of the prograns in
ot her states had tax  credits, schol ar shi ps, or a
conmbination of the two. Al of the prograns were self-
contained, and pointed out that every state had a
constitution that outlined some form of school choice. He
stated that there were many prograns that were over 100
years old. Each program was very different, and had
different targets and mssions. He stressed that wthout
legislative ruling, the constitutional |anguage had no
effect. He felt that there was a programin SB 100 which he
beli eved would be effective, but the constitution nust be
anended first. He felt that SB 100 would extend public
education to neet the needs of nore Al askans. He stated
that he found no case wherein the program "spun out of
control ."

9:33:15 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough asked for a restatenent of conmments
related to the first anendnment and the establishnent
cl ause. Senator Dunleavy replied that the US constitution
did not prevent public noneys from being spent on private
and/or religious education. He stated that the first
amendnent's establishnment clause prevented a state from
favoring one religion over another. He stated that Senator
Rubio from Florida had recently proposed a nationa

educati onal voucher program because it was constitutiona

under the US constitution.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that there were various prograns for
children for a wde range of types of children wthin
Al aska. Senator Dunleavy stressed that SJIR 9 did not create
any program He restated that the |anguage could pass, but
it required legislative action in order to create a
program

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 02/03/14 9:02 A M



Co-Chair Meyer stressed that the only decision before the
| egislature was to deci de whether or not the constitutional
anmendnent should go to the vote of the people.

Senator O son wondered how many states enacted prograns,
and then wthdrew from the prograns. Senator Dunleavy
agreed to provide that information.

9:38:52 AM
AT EASE

9:44: 30 AM
RECONVENED

M CHAEL HANLEY, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND
EARLY DEVELOPMENT, understood that this conversation had
been held in the legislature for nany years. He stated that
t he gover nor supported t he resol ution, W th t he
understandi ng that parents could nake better decisions for
their children than the governnent.

Vice-Chair Fairclough asked for coment regarding the
concern over whether or not the allocation for the public
school system would be disrupted while the constitutional
anmendnent was voted on. Conmi ssioner Hanley stated that SJR
9 would not adjust the funding; it wuld only speak to
removing part of the constitutional |anguage and allow ng
the constituent of Alaska to vote on that anendnent. He
furthered that he could not speak on any fiscal conponent
of SJR 9.

9:46: 36 AM

Senator O son queried the perspective of SIJR 9 from the
various school districts across the state. He specifically
wondered if the rural areas were nore in favor of the
resolution than urban areas, and vice versa. Conmm ssioner
Hanl ey responded that the issue was not the main concern in
rural Al aska, because opportunities for choice were
potentially limted. He remarked that it was difficult for
many communities to determne how this issue would nmake an
i npact, because they did not have access to a private
entity to use the potential voucher.

In response to a question from Senator O son, Conm ssioner
Hanley replied that he did not see the concern being

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 02/03/14 9:02 A M



related to the inpact on children. He stated that the
concern was nostly focused on the funding.

9:51: 01 AM

RI CHARD KOVER, SENI OR ATTORNEY, |INSTITUTE FOR JUSTI CE
ARLI NGTON, VA (via teleconference), announced that the
Institute for Justice had hel ped to pass and defend nobst of
the legislation that Senator Dunleavy addressed. He
expl ained that nost of the tinme, the legislation was only
chal  enged by teachers unions, school boards associations,
and sonetines by various public interest law firnms that
believe in a restrictive form the separation of church and
state. He addressed the l|egal aspects of nodifying the
constitution. He stated that the resolution would nake
possi bl e the school prograns that were already available in
other states. He stated that the Ilanguage in Alaska's
constitution was nore restrictive than the federal
constitution. He explained that the prograns conplied with
federal constitutional guarantees, but did not conport with
Al aska's education article, because of the way it was
interpreted by the Alaska Suprenme Court. Wen a Suprene
Cour t provi des a definitive interpretation of
constitutional |anguage, there are only two ways that
interpretation could be changed: 1) the state Suprene Court
must reverse itself. This was highly unlikely, because it
was unlikely that the legislature pass a |law which raises
the issue of constitutionality. The justices would nopst
likely follow their previous precedent, which in this case
was the Sheldon Jackson case from 1979; and 2) a
constitutional amendnent t hat changes the underlying
| anguage that the Suprene Court had interpreted in order to
overrule the decision. He felt that the original |anguage
of the Alaska constitution, which was interpreted in the
Shel don Jackson case, permts school program He expl ained
that the |anguage spoke to direct aid to private or
religious institutions. He felt that the word "direct" was
considered institutional aid or a "grant." He stated that
the Alaska Supreme Court interpreted that |anguage to
extend to aid to students, which was a very different
action. He explained that the Sheldon Jackson ruling
prohibited a program that would have assisted college
students in Al aska. He felt that the Supreme Court decision
that went too far, and had an inhibiting effect on the
| egislature's ability to do work that other states had
routinely followed. He offered that virtually every other
state had a higher education scholarship program using

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 02/03/14 9:02 A M



state noney to help students attend both public and private
colleges within the state.

9:58: 29 AM

Senator Dunleavy wondered if SB 100 wuld pass a
constitutional nmuster. M. Koner replied that the Shel don
Jackson ruling was extrenely broad. He stressed that the
beneficiary should be considered the student, and then the
st udent can use that noney to purchase individual
educati onal services.

Senator Dunleavy stated that Colorado's constitution's
| anguage could be considered nmuch nore restrictive than
Al aska's constitution, but Colorado had recently instituted
a school choice program He asked for information regarding
t hat summat i on. \V/ g Koner expl ained that Col or ado
interpreted its constitution the opposite to the Shel don
Jackson case. He stated that, in 1980, the Col orado Suprene
Court interpreted a nore restrictive constitutional
provision to permt aid to students to attend private
institutions.

Senator O son asked M. Koner if he thought the Suprene
Court would cone to a different conclusion, if the Sheldon
Jackson case would occur in 2014. M. Komer responded that
he did not believe that the Suprene Court would conme to a
different conclusion. He furthered that the court would
nost likely cone to the sane conclusion, because the
| awyers and judges followed the principle of "it's been
deci ded." GCenerally speaking, the courts would continue and
foll ow the decisions of their predecessors.

10: 04: 37 AM

Senator (O son restated his question. He specifically
wondered if the Supreme Court would reach the sane deci sion
in the present day, if that precedent had not already been
set. M. Konmer replied that it was highly unlikely that a
state supreme court would interpret the word "direct" to
preclude students. He felt that the court would allow
children to use state funds for a private educational
service. He felt that the Sheldon Jackson case ruling was
wWr ong.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if school choice decisions
had been overturned in other states. M. Koner responded

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 02/03/14 9:02 A M



that there were two prograns that had been discontinued
because of adverse court deci sions.

10: 09: 48 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough queried the negative effects of the
funding available for parents. M. Koner replied that a
schol arship program was substantially |ess provided to the
student than it costs the state and |ocal governnents.
Therefore, there was very little shrinkage in the public
education budget. He furthered that, because only a
fraction of the state aid followed the child to fund the
schol arship, the per capita expenditures for public schoo

students were often increased.

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered if M. Komer had any
experience in looking at the mgration for areas that have
smal | popul ations. M. Konmer responded that he did not know
about that issue, but he stated that for extrenely isolated
areas distance learning were originally pioneered for
renote rural areas.

10: 15: 07 AM

DR DEENA PARAMO, SUPERI NTENDENT, MAT-SU BOROUGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT (via teleconference), stated that the Mat-Su
School District served over 17,800 students in 45 schools
that had unique and diverse prograns to serve the youth of
the Mat-Su Valley community. She shared that the Mat-Su was
a successful school district that net the needs of its
community through innovation, a sense of renewal, public
school choice, and custonmer service. She stressed that the
Mat-Su comunity was supportive of its public schoo

system She explained that the Mit-Su had various school
sites wth small, one-room school houses that serve
chil dren K-12 in one comuni ty; and five | ar ge
conprehensive high schools that serve as neighborhood
schools in other borough conmunities. The Mat-Su had
speci al m ssion schools that focused on science and
engi neering; six charter schools; a renowned career and
techni cal high school; and sixteen |arge elenentary schools
that serve over 400 students each. In addition, the Mat-Su
had a central school serving over 1500 honeschool students
t hroughout the borough. Most recently, Mat - Su  Schoo

District opened the first mddle college in the state
|ocated on a UAA canpus that offered an onsite college
experience for high school juniors and seniors.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 02/03/14 9:02 A M



10: 21: 47 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if the school district feared a
constitutional amendnent on the  ballot. Dr . Par ano
responded that the school board had not weighed in on the
i ssue, but the adm nistration and |eadership in the schools
| ooked forward to being the best in the state.

Senator Dunl eavy wondered if private vendors were used to
support the ILPs. Dr. Paranp replied that nost of the
conmpani es were private vendors.

Senator Bishop felt that Dr. Paranp's remarks indicated
that there was no problem regarding school choice for
children in the Mit-Su. Dr. Paranp replied that the
district l|ooked to find what people were seeking. She
stated that the Mat-Su School District did not pass
j udgment; she just wanted good education for children.

Senator Bishop wondered if the Mt-Su School District had
experienced any layoffs of teachers, or if she was
anticipating any future layoffs of teachers. Dr. Parano
responded that every year the district faces |ayoffs.

Senat or Bi shop conmented that he was glad to hear that the
flux chord wel ding program was still ongoing, because those
wel ders may be needed in the near future.

10: 25: 35 AM

Co-Chair Meyer felt that the environnent of conpetition
created new prograns, and was one of the advantages of
school choice. He wondered if the inclusion of a private
school system would have a negative effect in the WMat-Su
region. Dr. Paranb replied that it would not have a
negative effect. She remarked that people were nmaking
choi ces for many different reasons regardi ng educati on.

BETHANY MARCUM SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SJR 9. She hoped that the committee
would allow Alaskans to vote on the constitutional
anmendnent. There were many polls that showed that Al askans
wanted the opportunity to vote on the issue. She felt that
the worst thing that would happen with the passage of the
anendnent would be that Al askans get nore opportunities.
She stressed that there were many issues facing education

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 02/03/14 9:02 A M



in Alaska, and felt that it was tinme to discuss the many
possibilities for <children. If SJR 9 would pass, the
possibilities for the legislature would be available to
address the education issues.

SJIR 9 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
10: 32: 36 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:32 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 02/03/14 9:02 A M



